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SEALED

FILED ___LobGED
—_RECEVED __ copy
DEC 2 8 2010
DISTRICT C
UNITED STATES DISTRIQT @g‘j@g& ISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF ARIZGRlA= DEPUTY
United States of America, ’
iy CR*01857 PHXF.JM (m e
Plaintiff,
V. INDICTMENT
1. Latricia Ann Williams VIO: 18 U.S.C. § 371 |
(Counts 1-19), Conspiracy)
ount 1
2. Gezelle Helena Amaechi
(Counts 1-19), and 18 U.S.C. §% 1343 and 2
Wire Fraud
3. Shelton DeWayne Tanner ounts 2-10
(Counts 1-19).
18 U.S.C. §§ 1028A and 2
&Aggravate Identity Theft)
Defendants. ounts 11-19
THE GRAND JURY CHARGES:
INTRODUCTION

1. LATRICIA ANN WILLIAMS (WILLIAMS) and GEZELLE HELENA AMAECHI
(AMAECHTI) are sisters, and SHELTON DEWAYNE TANNER (TANNER) was WILLIAMS’s
husband during the time period relevant to this Indictment.

2. During 2008, AMAECHI worked at Center 4 Health Enlightenment Enrichment
Empowerment Renewal Services (CHEEERS), an organization that provides services to disabled
individuals diagnosed with psychiatric disorders and behavioral problems. As an employee,
AMAECHI had access to personal information of CHEEERS clients, including their names,
social security numbers, and dates of birth.

3. The Internal Revenue Service(IRS) is an agency of the United States, charged with
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administering the income tax laws and processing claims for tax refunds.

4. From January 2009 through October 2009, defendants WILLIAMS, AMAECH], and
TANNER electronically filed and caused to be electronically filed 180 income tax returns falsely
claiming a total of more than $1,000,000 in tax refunds. As a result of these fraudulent income
tax returns, the IRS issued more than $300,000 in falsely claimed tax refunds.

COUNT ONE
18 USE §371)

5. The factual allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 4 are incorporated by reference and
re-alleged as though fully set forth herein.

6. Beginning at a time unknown to the Grand Jury, but at least as early as January 2009,
and continuing through at least October 2009, within the District of Arizona and elsewhere,
defendants WILLIAMS, AMAECHI, TANNER, and others, both known and unknown to the

Grand Jury, unlawfully, willfully, and knowingly agreed, combined, and conspired with others,

and each other, to commit the following offenses against the United States:

a. Title 18, United States Code, Section 287, False Claims,
b. Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343, Wire Fraud, and -
c. Title 18, United States Code, Section 1028A, Aggravated Identity Theft.

OBJECTS OF THE CONSPIRACY AND SCHEME TO DEFRAUD

7. The objects of the conspiracy and schemé to defraud, as devised and executed by

defendants andv others, were to (1) identify names, social security numbers, and dates of birth of

individual taxpayers, especially for individuals unlikely to file income tax returns, such as

recipients of disability benefits; (2) submit fraudulent income tax returns on behalf of those

individuals containing false claims for tax refund amounts; and (3) divert the falsely claimed tax
refunds to prepaid debit cards obtained and controlled by the defendants.

MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACY AND SCHEME TO DEFRAUD
8. To accomplish the objects of the conspiracy and the scheme to defraud, defendants

WILLIAMS, AMAECHI, and TANNER prepared and electronically filed with the IRS

2
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fraudulent income tax returns using the names, social security numbers, and dates of birth of
others, including CHEEERS clients. The tax returns claimed false refund amounts from the IRS
based on false statements of income, withholding, and eligibility for tax credits such as the First
Time Home Buyer Credit. To conceal their fraud, the defendants electronically filed the tax
returns using unsecured wireless networks in the neighborhood, directed the returns to prepaid
debit card accounts they had obtained under false identities, and recruited friends and associates
to receive the prepaid debit cards by mail at various addresses.
OVERT ACTS
9. In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to achieve the objects of the conspiracy, the

defendants, and others known and unknown, electronically filed the following fraudulent income

tax returns:
Overt Act Taxpayer ID Used E-filing Date Refund Claimed
Al G. Brigantti 1/13/09 $4633
Bl K. Bradley 1/13/09 $4633
Cl C. Burdette 1/13/09 $4725
D1 - D.Long 1/13/09 $4401
'El S. Chambers 1/13/09 $4953
Fl J. Meza 1/13/09 $4725
Gl N. Munson 1/13/09 $4734
H1 N. Geeter 1/13/09 $4594
I1 K. Cook 1/13/09 $4723
I T. Worz 1/13/09 $4725
K1 R. Briscoe 1/14/09 $4861
L1 D. Owens 1/14/09 $4840
M1 R. Conner 1/14/09 $4725
N1 D. Carter 1/14/09 $4861
Ol F. Barrientos 1/14/09 $4965
Pl R. Konke 1/14/09 $4927 -
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Overt Act Taxpayer ID Used E-filing Date Refund Claimed
Ql F. Worz 1/14/09 $4859
R1 M. Owens 1/14/09 $4927
S1 K. Williams 1/14/09 $4480
T1 B. Burris 1/14/09 $4927
Ul A. Lauria 1/14/09 $4970
\"2! P. Barrett 1/14/09 $4953
w1 S. Mullahy 1/14/09 $4937
X1 J. McDermott 1/14/09 $4933
Y1 M. Baldwin 1/15/09 $2676
Z1 C. Biddle 1/17/09 $4724
A2 J. Christian 1/18/09 $2695
B2 J. Robinson 1/18/09 $2695
C2 B. Jackson 1/19/09 $4725
D2 L. Bibbs 1/20/09 $10380
E2 T. Riggins 1/21/09 $9827
F2 J. Quiros 1/22/09 $9881
G2 S. Lameyer 1/22/09 $9981
H2 S. Woods 2/4/09 $3273
12 P. Valet 2/4/09 $3259
J2 B. Martin 2/4/09 $3280
K2 S. Guthrie 2/5/09 $3198
L2 M. Street 2/5/09 $3191
M2 D. Dauenhauer 2/5/09 $3292
N2 R. Stephenson 2/5/09 $3273
02 M. Storace 2/5/09 $3217
P2 S. Stanley 2/6/09 $3289
Q2 A. Greenspun 2/6/09 $3218
R2 J. Gutkecht 2/6/09 $3236
S2 M. Sparkman 2/6/09 $3218
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Overt Act Taxpayer ID Used " E-filing Date Refund Claimed
T2 J. Steele 2/6/09 $3218
U2 G. Amaechi 3/13/09 $7520
V2 D. Stille 3/29/09 $4945
W2 E. Mitchell 3/29/09 $4803
X2 M. Tara 3/30/09 $7496
Y2 J. Bush 3/30/09 $7511
Z2 J. Tarasiewicz 3/30/09 $7477
A3 K. Cogo 3/30/09 $7469
B3 L. Switalski 3/30/09 $7496
C3 E. Tello 3/31/09 $7526
D3 T. Mercer 3/31/09 $7545
"E3 A. Mills 3/31/09 $7545
F3 C. Meyerholtz 3/31/09 $7557
G3 L. Scherman 3/31/09 $7557
H3 M. Cogan 4/1/09 $7569
I3 S. Scott 4/2/09 $7477
I3 A. Share 4/2/09 $7569
K3 C. Zingaro 4/13/09 $7569
L3 L. Jackson 4/13/09 $4955
M3 K. Anthony 4/13/09 $5257
N3 K. Legrotte 4/13/09 $7483
03 K. Cole 4/13/09 $5041
P3 V. Bashline 4/13/09 $4877
Q3 D. Lomeli 4/13/09 $5254
R3 G. Jackson 4/13/09 $7569
S3 C. Oshana 4/14/09 $7477
T3 J. Davis 4/14/09 $7471
U3 Y. Parada 4/14/09 $7483
V3 M. Campbell 4/14/09 $5017
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Overt Act Taxpayer ID Used E-filing Date Refund Claimed
W3 D. King 4/14/09 $4909
X3 M. Hilliker 4/15/09 $7477
Y3 B. King 4/15/09 $4906
Z3 D. Kidriski 4/15/09 $4891
Ad S. Duenas 4/23/09 $5008
B4 S. Jordan 4/23/09 $4941
C4 T. Molling 4/23/09 $4954
D4 C. Gibbs 4/23/09 $4776
E4 L. Zapata 4/26/09 $7569
F4 N. Kinnaman 4/27/09 $4458
G4 V. Zaya 4/28/09 $7569
H4 D. Colley 4/28/09 $4698
14 F. Edmund 4/28/09 $4672
J4 L. Ybarra 4/28/09 $7569
K4 V. Zapata 4/28/09 $7569
L4 B. Melendez 4/28/09 $4932
M4 J. Rankin 4/29/09 $7477
N4 P. Wood 4/29/09 $7477
04 A. Pacheco 4/29/09 $4653
P4 E. Twyman 5/3/09 $4870
Q4 C. Gaitan 5/4/09 $7572
R4 J. Fisher 5/5/09 $7572
S4 M. Figueroa 5/6/09 $7572
T4 L. Terry 5/11/09 $7493
U4 S. Maxwell 5/11/09 $4891
V4 R. Moffitt 5/11/09 $4614
W4 M. Darnell 5/12/09 $7572
X4 C. Green 5/12/09 $7572
Y4 L. Cox 5/12/09 $7572
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Overt Act Taxpayer ID Used E-filing Date Refund Claimed
74 ‘ V. Khuse 5/13/09 $7369
A5 J. Morales 5/13/09 $7450
B5 P. King 5/13/09 $7458
Cs S. Taylor 5/13/09 $7178
D5 S. Thomas 5/13/09 $7331
ES L. Buckley 5/14/09 $7462
F5 T. Kranning 5/14/09 $7391
G5 C. Bunch 5/14/09 $7455
HS5 B. Cyran 5/25/09 $7572
I5 S. Covington 5/26/09 $7572
J5 H. Dean 5/26/09 $7539
K5 K. Jackson 5/27/09 $7483
L5 S. Hanna 5/28/09 $4049
M3 P. Metoxen 5/28/09 $4934
N5 B. Linderman 5/28/09 $5141
05 P. Tolifson. 5/28/09 $4692
P5 S. Tittensor 5/28/09 $4991
Q5 E. Luciano 5/28/09 $5068
RS E. Goodman 5/29/09 $5290
S5 V. Hanson 5/29/09 $5504
TS P. Miller 5/29/09 $4957
uUs S. Bricker 5/30/09 $4741
\'%A) I. Morales 5/30/09 $4870
W5 R. Brannon 5/31/09 $4793
X5 J. Grizzard 6/1/09 $5269
Y5 D. Emery 6/9/09 $5283
Z5 W. Israel 6/9/09 $5254
A6 J. Eideth 6/9/09 $5395
Bé6 H. Roberds 6/9/09 $5307
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Overt Act Taxpayer ID Used E-filing Date Refund Claimed
C6 L. Evers 6/9/09 $5385
D6 L. Gomez 6/9/09 $5254
E6 A. Rohrer 6/9/09 $5282
Fé6 D. Roncal 6/10/09 $5282
G6 C. Rose 6/10/09 $5332
H6 T. Rosare 6/10/09 $5121
I6 D. Nilsen 6/17/09 $5948
J6 R. Moreno 6/17/09 $5560
K6 Y. Morgan 6/18/09 $5560
L6 A. Gabriel 6/18/09 $5457
M6 B. Rudolph 6/18/09 $5782
N6 P. Robertson 6/18/09 $5641
06 K. Garcia 6/18/09 $5382
P6 D. Birdsong 6/18/09 $5351
Q6 S. Bio 6/18/09 $5308
R6 E. Bliss 6/19/09 $5352
S6 P. Hernandez 6/20/09 $5417
T6 A. Jackson 6/20/09 $5420
U6 J. Correll 6/22/09 $4917
V6 M. Cora 6/22/09 $5119
W6 A. Braga 6/24/09 $5641
X6 P. Having 7/6/09 $5647
Y6 S. Brown 7/11/09 $4153
76 A. Sade 7/13/09 $5866
A7 J. Cooper 7/13/09 $5620
B7 A. Livingston 7/16/09 $5813
C7 J. Munhall 7/16/09 $5847
D7 T. Barnaby 7/21/09 $5057
E7 K. Rinow 7/21/09 $5046
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Overt Act Taxpayer ID Used E-filing Date Refund Claimed
F7 T. Keiper 8/7/09 $5937
G7 K. Kenna 8/7/09 $4537
H7 V. Lima 8/9/09 $5793
17 M. Lorona 8/9/09 $5847
J7 K. Smith 8/9/09 $5642
K7 R. Richardson 8/10/09 $5621
L7 D. Olivas 8/10/09 $4867
M7 C. Esquivel 8/10/09 $5970
N7 S. Redden 9/14/09 $5647
07 T. Stuart 9/15/09 $5821
P7 K. Harcey 9/15/09 $5623
Q7 R. Tirado 9/15/09 $5812
R7 J. Nocton 10/6/09 $5631
S7 R. Morrow 10/6/09 $5982
T7 H. Bailey 10/6/09 $5948
U7 J. Mouse 10/6/09 $5517
V7 H. Munoz 10/6/09 $5910
W7 R. Mullins 10/6/09 $5976
X7 D. Baum 10/7/09 $5769

Total $1022285
10. In addition, in furtherance of the conspiracy, and to achieve the objects of the

conspiracy, the defendants, and others known and unknown, made the following phone calls to

the IRS to check the refund status of the fraudulent income tax returns used in the scheme:

Overt Act Taxpayer ID Used Call Date Caller ID Subscriber
A8 T. Riggins 1/31/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
B8 L. Williams 1/31/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
C8 L. Bibbs 1/31/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
D8 T. Riggins 2/1/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
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Overt Act Taxpayer ID Used Call Date Caller ID Subscriber
E8 L. Williams 2/1/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
F8 T. Riggins 2/2/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
G8 T. Riggins 2/3/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
H8 T. Riggins 2/3/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
I8 T. Riggins 2/3/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
J8 T. Riggins 2/4/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
K8 L. Bibbs 2/4/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
L8 L. Williams 2/9/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
M8 L. Williams 2/9/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
N8 L. Williams 2/10/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
08 L. Williams 2/11/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
P8 D. Owens 2/17/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
Q8 D. Owens 2/18/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
R8 P. Valet 2/19/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
S8 B. Martin 2/19/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
T8 D. Dauenhauer 2/19/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
U8 D. Dauenhauer 2/19/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
V8 M. Storace 2/19/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
W8 M. Street 2/19/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
X8 J. Steele 2/19/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
Y8 R. Stephenson 2/19/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
Z8 D. Owens 2/19/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
A9 D. Owens 2/19/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
B9 M. Sparkman 2/19/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
C9 J. Gutkecht 2/19/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
D9 A. Greenspun 2/19/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
E9 S. Stanley 2/19/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
F9 J. Gutkecht 2/19/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
G9 D. Stille 4/5/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS

10
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Overt Act Taxpayer ID Used Call Date Caller ID Subscriber
H9 D. Stille 4/8/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
19 L. Scherman 4/8/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
J9 M. Cogan 4/15/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
K9 C. Meyerholtz 4/15/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
L9 L. Switalski 4/15/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
M9 M. Tara 4/15/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
N9 G. Jackson 4/22/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
09 G. Jackson 4/24/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
P9 L. Zapata 5/6/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
Q9 L. Zapata 5/6/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
R9 T. Molling 5/6/09 - (623) 552-0840 AMAECHI
S9 C. Gibbs 5/6/09 (623) 552-0840 AMAECHI
T9 B. Melendez 5/6/09 (623) 552-0840 AMAECHI
U9 S. Jordan 5/6/09 (623) 552-0840 AMAECHI
V9 N. Kinnaman 5/6/09 (623) 552-0840 AMAECHI
W9 J. Rankin 5/6/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
X9 L. Zapata 5/7/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
Y9 C. Gaitan 5/13/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
79 M. Figueroa 5/13/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS

Al0 J. Fisher 5/13/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
B10 C. Green 5/20/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
C10 L. Cox 5/27/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
D10 J. Fisher 5/27/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
E10 C. Green 5/27/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
F10 L. Gomez 6/24/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
G10 L. Gomez 6/25/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
H10 J. Eideth 6/25/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
110 L. Gomez 6/25/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
- J10 C. Rose 6/25/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS

11
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Overt Act Taxpayer ID Used Call Date Caller ID Subscriber
K10 A. Rohrer 6/25/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
L10 C. Rose 6/25/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
M10 C. Rose 6/26/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
N10 L. Gomez 6/27/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
11. In addition, in furtherance of the conspiracy, and to achieve the objects of the

conspiracy, the defendants, and others known and unknown, made the following phone calls to

financial institutions to inquire about prepaid debit card accounts used in the scheme:

12

Overt Act Cardholder Name Call Date Caller ID Subscriber
All J. McDermott 2/25/09 (623) 327-1932 TANNER
Bl1l B. Burris 4/10/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
Cl1 J. McDermott 4/13/09 (623) 755-3122 - WILLIAMS
D11 J. McDermott 4/17/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
Ell R. Konke 4/17/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
F11 J. McDermott 4/19/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
Gl1 P. Barrett 4/19/09 (623) 552-0840 AMAECHI
H1l R. Konke 4/19/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
I11 J. McDermott 4/21/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
J11 R. Konke 4/21/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
K11 R. Konke 4/22/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
L11 A. Lauria 4/24/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
Ml11 A. Lauria 4/27/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
N1l - J. McDermott 4/27/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
Ol11 P. Barrett 4/27/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
P11 R. Konke 4/27/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
Qll R. Konke 5/3/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
R11 R. Konke 5/6/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
S11 F. Barrientos 5/7/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
T11 F. Barrientos 5/8/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
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Overt Act Cardholder Name Call Date Caller ID Subscriber
Ull A. Lauria 5/9/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
Vi1 J. McDermott 5/9/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
Wli1 F. Barrientos 5/10/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
X11 R. Konke 5/10/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
Y11 S. Mullahy 5/10/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
Z11 F. Barrientos 5/11/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
Al2 F. Barrientos 5/13/09 (623) 755-3 122 WILLIAMS
B12 S. Mullahy 5/13/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
Ci12 S. Mullahy 5/15/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
D12 S. Mullahy 5/18/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
E12 A. Lauria 5/26/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
F12 D. Carter 5/26/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
Gl12 F. Wortz 5/26/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
H12 J. McDermott 5/26/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
112 R. Briscoe 5/26/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
J12 F. Wortz 6/5/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
K12 R. Brannon 6/9/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
L12 A. Lauria 6/10/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
M12 B. Burris 6/17/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
N12 F. Barrientos 6/17/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
012 J. McDermott 6/17/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
P12 P. Barrett 6/17/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
QIl2 R. Konke 6/17/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
R12 S. Mullahy 6/18/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
S12 F. Wortz 6/24/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
T12 R. Brannon 6/24/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
Ul2 S. Mullahy 6/24/09 (623) 755-3122 WILLIAMS
V12 A. Lauria 7/13/09 (623) 986-7293 TANNER
W12 B. Burris 7/13/09 (623) 986-7293 TANNER

13
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Overt Act Cardholder Name Call Date Caller ID Subscriber
X12 D. Carter 7/13/09 (623) 986-7293 TANNER
Y12 F. Barrientos 7/13/09 (623) 986-7293 TANNER
712 F. Wortz 7/13/09 (623) 986-7293 TANNER
Al3 J. McDermott 7/13/09 (623) 986-7293 TANNER
B13 P. Barrett 7/13/09 (623) 986-7293 TANNER
Cl13 R. Briscoe 7/13/09 (623) 986-7293 TANNER
D13 R. Konke 7/13/09 (623) 986-7293 TANNER
E13 S. Mullahy 7/13/09 (623) 986-7293 TANNER

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.

COUNTS TWO THROUGH TEN
Wire Fraud
18 U.S.C. § 1343

12.  The factual allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 11 are incorporated by reference and
re-alleged as though fully set forth herein.

13.  Beginning no later than January 2009 and continuing through at least October 2009,
within the District of Arizona and elsewhere, defendahts WILLIAMS, AMAECHI, TANNER,
and others, both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, knowingly and willfully devised and
intended to devise a scheme and artifice to obtain money and property from the IRS by means
of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises.

14.  On or about the dates listed below, within the District of Arizona and elsewhere,
defendants WILLIAMS, AMAECHI, and TANNER executed the scheme and artifice by
knowingly transmitting and causing to be transmitted by means of wire and radio
communications in interstate commerce certain writings, pictures, signals, and sounds, to and
from the District of Arizona and elsewhere, as set forth below, with each instance being a

separate count of this Indictment:

14
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Case 2:10-cr-01857-FJIM Document 3

Filed 12/28/10 Page 15 of 16

Count Taxpayer Name E-filing Date Refund Claimed
2 K. Cogo 3/30/09 $7469
3 E. Tello 3/31/09 $7526
4 C. Oshana 4/14/09 $7477
5 Y. Parada 4/14/09 $7483
6 M. Hilliker 4/15/09 $7477
7 C. Green 5/12/09 $7572
8 L. Gomez 6/9/09 $5254
9 D. Nilsen 6/7/09 $5948
10 P. Robertson 6/18/09 $6541
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 2.

COUNTS ELEVEN THROUGH NINETEEN

15.

Aggravated Id

lentity Theft

(18 U.S.C. § 1028A)

re-alleged as though fully set forth herein.

16.
defendants WILLIAMS, AMAECHI, and TANNER did knowingly possess and use, without
lawful authority, a means of identification of another person during and in relation to a violation

of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343, Wire Fraud, with each instance being a separate

count of this Indictment:

The factual allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 14 are incorporated by reference and

On or about the dates listed below, within the District of Arizona and elsewhere,

15

Count Taxpayer Name E-filing Date Refund Claimed
11 K. Cogo 3/30/09 - $7469
12 " E. Tello 3/31/09 $7526
13 C. Oshana 4/14/09 $7477
14 Y. Parada 4/14/09 $7483
15 M. Hilliker 4/15/09 $7477
16 C. Green 5/12/09 $7572
17 L. Gomez 6/9/09 $5254
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Case 2:10-cr-01857-FJM Document 3 Filed 12/28/10 Page 16 of 16

Count Taxpayer Name E-filing Date Refund Claimed
18 D. Nilsen 6/7/09 $5948
19 P. Robertson 6/18/09 $6541

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1028A and 2.

A TRUE BILL

/S/
FOREPERSON
Date: December 28, 2010

DENNIS K. BURKE
United States Attorney
District of Arizona

/S/
JAMES R. KNAPP
Assistant U.S. Attorney
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